
 

Santa Clara City Council Page 1 
October 14, 2015 

SANTA CLARA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 14, 2015 

MINUTES 

 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF SANTA CLARA, WASHINGTON COUNTY, 

UTAH, met for a Regular Meeting on Wednesday, October 14, at 5:00 p.m. in the City Council 

Chambers of the Town Hall at 2603 Santa Clara Drive, Santa Clara, Utah. 

 

Notice of the time, place and agenda of the meeting was provided to the Spectrum and to each 

member of the governing body by emailing a copy of the Notice and Agenda to the Spectrum 

and also, along with any packet information, to the mayor and each council member, at least two 

days before the meeting. 

 

Present:   Mayor ProTem Mary Jo (Tode) Hafen 

Council Members: Herb Basso, Jerry Amundsen, Ken Sizemore, David Whitehead, Mary Jo 

(Tode) Hafen 

City Manager:         Edward Dickie 

Deputy Recorder: Lisa Bundy 

 

Others Present: Jack Taylor, Public Works Director; Corey Bundy, Building Official; Brad 

Hayes, Parks Director; Matt Ence, City Attorney; Bob Nicholson, City Planner; Ken Armstrong, 

City Judge; George Elwell; Linda Elwell; Robbin Frei; Mandi Krawczyk; Rachel Jackson; Jarett 

Waite; Kaleb Hopkin  

 

1. Call to Order: Mayor ProTem Hafen called the meeting to order at 5:02 p.m. 

 

2. Opening Ceremony: 
 

     -  Pledge of Allegiance:  Jerry Amundsen 

     -  Opening Comments:  Jerry Amundsen 

 

 3. Communications and Appearances: None. 

 

4. Working Agenda:  
  

A. Public Hearing(s):  

 

1. Public Hearing regarding proposed application for funding from the Utah Permanent 

Community Impact Fund Board (CIB) to make road, storm drain, and sewer 

improvements on the west end of Santa Clara Drive (Hwy 91). 

 

-  Jack Taylor, Public Works Director, stated that they are moving along on the Hwy 91 

project.  They just got their last review on the plans and they are completed.  They have 

reviewed the land specifications.  They have an issue with one of the Ivin’s right of ways.  

If they don’t get their right of way it might push the project back a little bit.  The Mayor 

is involved now.  He wants to get the bids going.  He said they do need to come up with 



 

Santa Clara City Council Page 2 
October 14, 2015 

about $480,000.  He said they have gone to the CIB for a partial loan and a grant.  He 

said this is #4 on the project list for funding.  He said that is a good position.  The CIB 

has everything they need but part of the process is this Public Hearing stating that we do 

realize that we are asking for this funding and it could either be in loan or grant.  If they 

don’t give any grant it could all be in loan.  Jack said they are going to put in for cash 

$215,000, federal grant for $242,000 and loan for $243,000 with a total of CIB Funds of 

$485,000 plus the cash amount.  He said that the Council just needs to approve this 

stating that it could be either loan or grant. 

- Tode Hafen asked if he had a feeling on how it would go. 

- Jack Taylor stated that said they had a really good chance because the City is putting 

$215,000 cash in.  He said they (the CIB) thinks that this is a good project.  He said that 

you never know for sure.  He said that he also put in for another grant for some tap 

funding and hopefully the City can get that for $240,000.  He said they will meet with the 

CIB Board in December. 

- Ed Dickie asked how much the total project is estimated to be. 

- Jack Taylor stated that it is about $3.8 million total project. 

 

- Mayor ProTem Hafen asked if anyone was here to address this item. 

 

 5:09 p.m. Public Hearing Opened. 

 

- Ken Sizemore stated that it is well to define the acronyms of the CIB.  He said that it is 

a Community Impact Board.  He said it is a funding source that comes from mineral lease 

revenues that come back to the State of Utah.  The Board consists of elected officials 

from all over the State who decide where they are going to allocate the funds.  He said 

that at this point in time, there is a lot of funding available and he believes the City’s 

chances are pretty good. 

- Jack Taylor said that he believes the interest rate for the loan would be 2 ½%. 

No other comments were made.  

 

5:14 p.m. Public Hearing Closed. 

 

B. General Business: 

 

1. Discussion and/or Action on the proposed application for funding from the Utah 

Permanent Community Impact Fund Board (CIB) to make road, storm drain, and sewer 

improvements on the west end of Santa Clara Drive (Hwy 91).  Presented by Jack Taylor, 

Public Works Director. 

 

- Jack Taylor said that there is no sewer on the application.  Strike that from the wording.  

He also said that it needs to be stated that this can either be a loan or a grant. 

 

****Motion to Approve the Application for the funding from the Utah Permanent Community 

Impact Fund Board (CIB) to make road and storm drain improvements on the west end of Santa 

Clara Drive (Hwy 91).  The funding can be a combination of loan or grant or one or the other. 

Motion by Jerry Amundsen, seconded by David Whitehead.  

Voting Aye: Tode Hafen, David Whitehead, Jerry Amundsen, Ken Sizemore and Herb Basso. 



 

Santa Clara City Council Page 3 
October 14, 2015 

Voting Nay: None. 

Motion Carried.  
 

2. Requesting Approval of Resolution 2015-13R, a Resolution requesting the 

Recertification of the City of Santa Clara Municipal Justice Court.  Presented by Ken 

Armstrong, City Judge. 

 

 - Judge Armstrong stated that every 4 years every Justice Court in the State needs to be 

recertified by the entity that takes care of or funds the Court.  He said that their 

certification runs out in January 2016.  Recertification starts in February 2016.  He said 

that through that there is a resolution that is required and then an opinion letter from the 

City Attorney that states the Court meets all the criteria for the size Court that they are.  

He said that they currently meet all the criteria.  He said that the City has been very good 

to work with.  He said that it’s just basically a resolution that needs to be approved by the 

City Council that says that the Court does meet the criteria and that it’s determined that 

it’s the best interest of the City of Santa Clara to continue to provide for a Justice Court.   

 - Matt Ence, City Attorney, stated that he has reviewed the requirements and the 

information that he received from Judge Armstrong.  He said there is an opinion letter in 

the drop box.  He said that it is pretty straight forward and there are no red flags as he 

went through the requirements.  He said he sees no reason to not have it recertified. 

 - Herb Basso asked if the City was still in shared agreement with Ivins.   

 - Matt Ence stated that he didn’t know for sure and that was a question for Brock. 

 - Ed Dickie stated that the agreement was still in force.  He said it’s ongoing.  He said the 

percentage is based on the population, the water meters/the count.  Ivins is 66% and 

Santa Clara is 44%.  The revenue is shared 50/50%.   

 - Ken Sizemore asked Judge Armstrong how things are going in general with operations 

of the Court. 

 - Judge Armstrong stated that things are going really well.  He said that he has received 

compliments on how they deal with the public and how they do their business.  He said 

they have a good team.   

 - Herb Basso asked if they use their detector and if there is an officer in there with them. 

 - Judge Armstrong stated that they do use the detector in Court and there is an officer 

there.   

 

****Motion to Approve Resolution 2015-13R, a Resolution requesting the Recertification of the 

City of Santa Clara Municipal Justice Court. 

Motion by David Whitehead, seconded by Jerry Amundsen. 

Voting Aye: David Whitehead, Jerry Amundsen, Tode Hafen, Ken Sizemore and Herb Basso. 

Voting nay: None 

Motion Carried.   
 

      3. Discussion and/or Action regarding the Land Exchange between Santa Clara City and 

Kent Frei.  Presented by Matt Ence, City Attorney. 

 

- Matt Ence reviewed the map of the Land Exchange with the City Council.  (See 

attached.)  He stated that there are a couple of places downtown where there are some 

odd boundary lines.  He said they don’t match up with some of the historic fence lines.  



 

Santa Clara City Council Page 4 
October 14, 2015 

There are places where the City could have better access to potential slide areas.  Kent 

Frei has come to the City on behalf of a couple of property owners: Shelby and Jewel 

Frei and Vick and Gwendolyn Frei as well as his own company, Santa Clara 

Development.  They propose exchanging several parcels of property with the City.  There 

are three different exchanges that the Council is being asked to approve.  There is a spur 

on Vernon Street which is enclosed by fences.  It is not needed by the City for any type of 

right of way.  There are also a couple of interesting spurs that come down north to south 

in that same area.  There is nothing to indicate that there is any public ownership.  It’s all 

fenced in.  It has been used for farm property for a long, long time.  He looked at the old 

surveys and felt that some of these were excluded from the surveys with the intent that 

there would be some kind of a public access at some point.  They are not all the same in 

terms of title.  One next to Vick and Gwendolyn Frei’s property is titled in the name of 

the City.  The other two little spurs are showing no ownership at all.  He said that there 

are some boundary line cleanup that could happen.  Kent has proposed they do some 

exchanging to clean that up.  One area is potential landslide area.  Kent has proposed for 

the City to deed a small portion of this hillside to add to the yellow portion of the 

property (see attached map) and the City will receive in return a 20 or 25 foot access 

easement on the backside of the property.  The City will also receive a ½ acre parcel on 

the hillside.  It is surrounded by City property.  One exchange will be with the Vick and 

Gwendolyn Frei Family Trust to resolve issues around their property.  The same with the 

Shelby and Jewel Frei Family Trust.  He said roads will still go through there. It is a 

public road.  The surveyors went out with instructions to survey the fence lines, find out 

where the boundaries ought to be to matched up with the historic private verses public 

use and determine what properties need to be exchanged to make all those boundary lines 

match up with what’s actually on the ground.  Matt stated that this is a straight exchange.  

The agreement acknowledges that the value of these properties in terms of fair market 

value, that none of them have significant value.  There are no other claimants to the 

properties other than those involved.  He said that he has been careful in the agreements 

not to make any warranties or representations about title.  He said that the City is just 

basically giving them a quick claim deed.   

- Ed Dickie said that this makes it better for the City.  He said they will now have all the 

road right of way. 

- Tode Hafen asked if this should require a public hearing. 

- Matt Ence said no it doesn’t require one. 

- David Whitehead asked about any environment issues or dumping that has happened on 

the property that the City will be receiving. 

- Matt Ence stated that they have not required any kind of environmental review.  He said 

that they have required them to provide title reports which covers all the parcels that the 

City will be getting.  He said the title report is clear so there aren’t any mortgages or liens 

to be concerned about.   

- The Council asked Jack Taylor if there needs to be any environmental concerns about 

the property the City will be receiving. 

- Jack Taylor said that he didn’t see anything in that area.  It’s hillside property.  He said 

they will actually be able to maintain that area if they do have water issues. 

   

****Motion to Approve the Action of Land Exchange between Santa Clara City and Kent Frei 

and other parties as mentioned.  



 

Santa Clara City Council Page 5 
October 14, 2015 

Motion by Herb Basso, seconded by Jerry Amundsen. 

 

  - Herb Basso had a request that a copy of this be put in with the actual titles. 

  - Matt Ence stated that the records of survey are already on file with the County. 

 

Voting Aye: Herb Basso, Ken Sizemore, Jerry Amundsen, David Whitehead and Tode Hafen. 

Voting nay: None 

Motion Carried.   
 

4. Discussion and/or Action to approve the amended Animal Ordinance No. 2015-16.  

Presented by Matt Ence, City Attorney.  

 

 - Matt Ence stated that they went through this at the last meeting and came away with 

some instructions from Council on this to make some revisions and bring it back.  The 

previous draft had a requirement that the City do licensing of cats.  The Council asked 

Matt to remove that and now it is strictly licensing of dogs.  There were suggestions of 

licensing of animals every third year instead of yearly.  The decision was to keep annual 

licensing.  The draft is now consistent with that.   There was a comment about removing 

references to Seeing Eye dogs and hearing dogs and replacing those with a more general 

reference to certified service dogs and that has been done.  There was beekeeping chapter 

of the title that has been removed for future discussion if the Council would like to look 

at that.  Linda has seen the most recent draft and sent back some comments and she 

identified a few things that Matt was able to clean up.   

 - Tode Hafen asked Linda if she had any comments. 

 - Linda Elwell stated that she is happy with it.  She said that Chief Flowers told her that 

he wants to go back and clean up the Ivins Animal Ordinance so that it matches Santa 

Clara’s. 

 

****Motion to Approve the amended Animal Ordinance No. 2015-16. 

Motion by Ken Sizemore, seconded by Herb Basso. 

Voting Aye: Ken Sizemore, Jerry Amundsen, Tode Hafen, Herb Basso and David Whitehead. 

Voting Nay: None 

Motion Carried.  
 

5. Request Approval of Resolution 2015-14R, a Resolution cancelling the 2015 General 

Election.  Presented by Edward Dickie, City Manager.  

 

- Ed Dickie stated that Wally Ritchie withdrew from being a candidate.  He said that this 

is a formality that the Council has to do officially.  He said that this is saying that there is 

not going to be an election.  This resolution will be sent up to the Lieutenant Governor.   

- Herb Basso stated that the election process is null and void.  He asked if the candidates 

have to still follow the requirements such as financial statements. 

- Ed Dickie said that he doesn’t know.  He didn’t think so.  He said Chris will know.   

- Herb Basso asked if the candidates will automatically be it since there is no election.  

He asked if they need to be appointed. 

- Matt Ence said that his understanding is that the way it works is where the election is 

uncontested that those who are running for those seats take those seats by acclamation.  



 

Santa Clara City Council Page 6 
October 14, 2015 

He said that will be formalized at the first of the year when the current terms are up and 

the new terms begin.  He said that all that is happening right now is that they are ending 

the election process because there is no need to continue it further.  Chris has been 

speaking with the State elections people.  He told Herb that concerning his question about 

financial statements and things like that he would say that the safest bet would be to go 

ahead and do the disclosures anyway. 

- Tode Hafen welcomed Jarett Waite to the Council and thanked him for coming to the 

meeting and encouraged him to continue to do so. 

- Herb Basso stated that he called the candidate that withdrew, Wally Ritchie, and he said 

that it was a professional decision and to avoid a conflict of interest. 

 

****Motion to Approve Resolution 2015-14R, a Resolution cancelling the 2015 General Election. 

Motion by David Whitehead, seconded by Jerry Amundsen. 

Voting Aye: Jerry Amundsen, Tode Hafen, David Whitehead, Herb Basso and Ken Sizemore. 

Voting nay: None 

Motion Carried.   
 

5.  Reports: 

    

A. Mayor / Council Reports 

 

Jerry Amundsen: 

o Flood Control District was cancelled this month because the quorum was not 

available.  It was rescheduled for the first Monday in November. 

o Planning Commission met last night.  There are a couple of items coming before City 

Council the next meeting regarding an adjustment to the General Plan and subsequent 

development on that parcel on Lava Cove and Little League Drive. 

 

David Whitehead: 

o Mosquito Abatement District has not met this month.  Things have been pretty calm 

in Washington County.  They will meet again in a few weeks.  

 

Herb Basso: 

o Economic Development has a little bit of news.  Because the City is a sponsor of 

Senior Games, the City gets a little perk.  They are able to put in a stuffer for the 

10,000 programs for each individual athlete to save shop time.  The City has a booth 

at Senior Games.  There is quite a bit of activity in the town this week because of the 

Games.  They were able to put Paradise Village on the backside of the brochure 

which is important for the City economically because they are vacation homes and 

units.   

 

Ken Sizemore: 

o The Committee on the Veteran’s Memorial has been meeting.  They are scheduled for 

a decision by the Council at the next meeting.  There are three locations they are 

talking about: Town Square, up on Canyon view Park, and at the cemetery.  They are 

leaning toward the cemetery being the most effective location.  They are receiving 

funds.  One of the committee members, Wade Roberts, gave a sizeable donation and 



 

Santa Clara City Council Page 7 
October 14, 2015 

Charlie matched it.  The memorial will cost around $50,000.  They hope to have it in 

place and a ribbon cutting by Memorial Day 2017.  Some preliminary design work 

has been done.   

o Transportation and Air Quality Meetings are next week. 

o He has had a couple of calls about parking on the streets especially on Arrowhead and 

Vineyard.  This is residents parking full sized tractor trailers and construction 

equipment out on the public right of way.  These rigs have been parked for more than 

48 hours straight.  There are some issues of being parked at the front of the lot.   

       - Corey Bundy stated that if they get a complaint they act upon it.  They send a letter.   

       - Ed Dickie recommended to the Council that if they get calls of complaint for the  

       code enforcement to give them Corey’s number and tell them to tell Corey that you     

       directed them to call Corey.  

 

 Ed Dickie: 

o Jack Taylor will be replying to David about his commercial.  He will be replying to 

all of the Council. 

o He feels that Meet the Candidate night is still a good idea.  It gives people a chance to 

meet Jarett Waite and the Council.  He suggested it be on November 4 at 7:00 right 

after the Work Meeting.  They can put it in the next newsletter. He asked if it was 

okay with the Council to include Jarett Waite in Ed’s updates since he is going to be a 

Council member.  The Council thought that was a good idea.  Ed Dickie said the 

website will be changed in the morning concerning the election and Meet the 

Candidates.  

 

Mayor ProTem Tode Hafen: 

o Senior Games are in full force.  She told Brad that the fields are beautiful.  She said 

that there has only been one complaint in the two weeks and that was that the infield 

was too soft.   

o She will be meeting with Brooke and Lainie to recap Swiss Days.  They will be 

coming to Council to report.   

 

- Jack Taylor wanted to make the Council aware that there is water coming out of the 

hill in the backyard of a couple of homes by the Jacob Hamblin home.  He said that 

they have gone out and looked at it and have spent about 2 ½ days checking all the 

roads and streets and checking the water lines for leakage for a water line break.  He 

said that during that process they have found two home services that were leaking and 

one water service quite a way up the street with a water line leak.  He said that he 

hopes that is what it was but they aren’t sure.  They asked people that live above there 

to see if they have any irrigation problems or sprinkler problems.  He said they’ve 

checked everything up there and can’t find anything.  He said they also did a test on 

the water and there isn’t any chlorination in it so it doesn’t look like its culinary 

water.  He said that there is a little bit of a slide behind one of the houses.  He said 

that tomorrow he is going to have the City shut the valves off on the main lines and 

they will use listening devices to listen for water leaks.  They will also put a pressure 

valve on the fire hydrants to see if the pressure reduces at all.      

 

7. Approval of Claims and Minutes:   



 

Santa Clara City Council Page 8 
October 14, 2015 

 

- September 23, 2015 City Council Minutes 

- October 7, 2015 Work Meeting Minutes 

- Claims through October 14, 2015 

 

****Motion to Approve Work Meeting Minutes from October 7, 2015, the Regular City Council 

Meeting Minutes from September 23, 2015 and claims through October 14, 2015. 

Motion by Ken Sizemore, seconded by Herb Basso. 

Voting Aye: Herb Basso, Ken Sizemore, Jerry Amundsen, David Whitehead and Tode Hafen. 

Voting nay: None 

Motion Carried.   
 

8. Calendar of Events 
 

- October 28, 2015 City Council Meeting 

- November 4, 2015 City Council Work Meeting  

 

6. Executive Session: Audience was excused. 

 

9. Adjournment: 

 

Motion to adjourn by Herb Basso. 

Seconded by David Whitehead with all members present voting aye. 

Meeting Adjourned at 6:23 p.m. 

 

 

 

    __________________________    Date Approved: ________________ 

Chris Shelley – City Recorder 

 


